
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 11, 2019 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 
 

 
1. Call to Order.   

 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 28, 2019. 
 

 

 5. Written Communications. 
 

 

6. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

 

 
 

 

Presentation 7. Second Watershed Permit Update. 
 

 

Motion 8. Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board of Directors Meeting. 
 

 

Motion 9. Review and Consider Approval of Proposed Revisions to Policy 3060, Communication 
by Members of the Board of Directors (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs 
Committee). 
 

 

Direction 10. Receive Update on Private Lateral Outreach Video and Provide Direction (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Direction 11. Provide Direction on Board Compensation Survey. 
 

 

Information 12. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of January 17, 2019. 
 

 

Information 13. Check Register. 
 

 

Information 14. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, February 8, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. 

• Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

1 of 71



b. Budget & Finance Committee – will not meet. 
c. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – will not meet. 
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
e. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 
f. Audit Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information  15.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

 16.   Other Business: 
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

17. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, February 25, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

2 of 71



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, February 8, 2019 

10:30 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of February 11, 2019: 

 Review and Consider Approval of Proposed Revisions to Policy 3060, Communication by 
Members of the Board of Directors 

 Receive Update on Private Lateral Outreach Video and Provide Direction 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

3 of 71



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

January 28, 2019 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 
  Manny Fernandez, Vice President  

Jennifer Toy, Secretary  
Tom Handley, Director 
Pat Kite, Director  

 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
Skip Calvo, Purchasing Agent 
Todd Jacob, Information Technology Administrator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
VISITORS:   Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters 

Monique Spyke, PFM Asset Management, LLC 
Izac Chyou, PFM Asset Management, LLC 

 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 14, 2019 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of January 14, 2019.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF JANUARY 17, 2019 
 
It was moved by Secretary Toy, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Special Meeting of January 17, 2019.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4 of 71



DECEMBER 2018 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance and Legal and Community Affairs 
Committees.  General Manager Eldredge provided an overview of the Odor Report and 
work group reports included in the Board meeting packet.  Business Services Coach 
Brenner reviewed the financial reports included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2019 CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  District Counsel Murphy stated the 
Political Reform Act requires the District review its Conflict of Interest Code every two 
years.  The Conflict of Interest Code incorporates the Political Reform Act and sets forth 
the positions of officials required to submit a Form 700, Statement of Economic Interests.  
The Union Sanitary District Conflict of Interest Code, last updated in December 2016, has 
been reviewed and found to require modification to include the position of Human 
Resources Manager in addition to updated code sections.  District staff will submit the 
updated Conflict of Interest Code to Alameda County, the District’s code reviewing body.  
Staff recommended the Board adopt a resolution approving the updated Conflict of 
Interest Code. 
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Toy, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2850 Approving a Revised Conflict of Interest Code.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF POLICY NO. 2030, INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services Coach 
Brenner stated the District’s Investment Policy requires review and Board approval 
annually.  In December 2018, the District retained the services of PFM Asset 
Management, LLC to serve as the District’s investment advisory agent.  District staff have 
worked with PFM to update the Policy to accurately reflect language in the government 
code including addition of supernationals and asset backed securities.  Monique Spyke 
and Izac Chyou of PFM Asset Management presented information regarding 
supernationals and asset backed securities and responded to Boardmember questions.  
Staff recommended the Board review and consider approval of the District’s Investment 
Policy, Policy No. 2030 and renewal of delegation of authority of Treasurer to the 
Business Services Coach for a one-year period, per California Government Code Section 
53607. 
 

5 of 71



It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Approve 
Revised Policy No. 2030, Investment Policy, and Renew Delegation of Authority of 
Treasurer to the Business Services Coach for a One-Year Period.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE CHANGES 
EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Human Resources Manager 
Boucher stated the Publicly Available Pay Schedule is mandated by CalPERS to ensure 
consistency between CalPERS employers and enhance disclosure and transparency of 
public employee compensation.  The salary changes contained in the September 1, 2018, 
document reflect:  adjustments made to Unclassified employee pay ranges as result of 
the August 2018 MSA adjustments and Performance Appraisals; addition of previously 
approved Organizational Performance Manager and Organizational Performance 
Coordinator I and II positions; and updates the General Manager’s salary based on 
current contract.  Staff recommended the Board review and consider approval of the 
September 1, 2018, Publicly Available Pay Schedule which will be posted and retained in 
accordance with CalPERS requirements. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Toy, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve the Publicly 
Available Pay Schedule Effective September 1, 2018.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO 
TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH BROWN AND CALDWELL FOR THE PRIMARY 
DIGESTER NO. 7 PROJECT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Board authorized execution of Task 
Order    No. 2 with Brown and Caldwell (BC) for final design services associated with the 
Project on December 18, 2017.  Following notification of an increase to the engineer’s 
estimated construction cost, District staff had BC perform a value engineering (VE) effort 
to ultimately reduce construction cost of the Project.  The VE study identified four 
concepts that were shared during the Board meeting held October 8, 2018.  Staff also 
requested BC re-evaluate the recommended digester size given revised cost estimates 
and three additional volumes were evaluated.  Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
includes modification of design for the Project to incorporate the cost saving concepts 
identified in the VE study and enlarge the volume to 2.4 million gallons.  Staff 
recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 
to Task Order No. 2 with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $428,143 for the Primary 
Digester No. 7 Project. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Authorize 
the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 with Brown and 
Caldwell in the Amount of $428,143 for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 

6 of 71



INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Information Technology Software and Hardware Agreement Summary 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
General Manager Eldredge stated the Board requested a summary of the District’s 
software and hardware annual licensing and maintenance costs, which was summarized 
in a table in the Board meeting packet.  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
Manager Simonich stated the District’s Information Technology (IT) Team procures 
licenses for and supports 69 different IT systems that are a combination of hardware and 
software.  IT Administrator Jacob provided additional information regarding District 
servers.  Staff responded to Board member questions.  The Board requested staff note 
the overall annual increase to the Software and Hardware Agreement Summary when it 
is presented to the Board annually. 
 
Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated the total benefit to date for the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Solar Carport, constructed in 2011, was $582,687 for a 65.8% simple payback.  The 
total benefit to date for the Irvington Pump Station Solar Facility, constructed in 2012, was 
$2,563,314 for an 89.8% simple payback.  The total benefit to date for the Cogeneration 
Facility, constructed in 2014, was $7,041,310 for a 55.9% simple payback.   
 
Update on the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee. 
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated Alameda County Water District is 
responsible for regulating the groundwater supply within Union Sanitary District’s service 
area.  The purpose of the Plant’s groundwater monitoring program was to document 
groundwater conditions in areas of concern at ten monitoring wells.  In September 2018 
Brown and Caldwell sampled the groundwater from the seven remaining wells, analyzed 
the test results, and prepared a report.  Conclusions from the 2018 groundwater 
monitoring event were outlined in the Board meeting packet.    
 
Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
stated the CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis for the second quarter of FY 2019, 
included in the Board meeting packet, covers transactions from the billing period October 
23, 2018 through December 22, 2018.  Staff responded to Boardmember questions. 
 
Boardmember Expenses, Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
reviewed the Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 Boardmember Expense report included 
in the Board meeting packet. 
 
Check Register 
There were no questions regarding the Check Register. 
 
 

7 of 71



COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Budget & Finance, Personnel, Engineering and Information Technology, and 
Legal/Community Affairs Committees met.   
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 

• Introduced District Purchasing Agent Skip Calvo. 
• There will be a Special Joint Meeting of City Councils from Fremont, Hayward, 

Newark, San Leandro, and Union City to receive a presentation from the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) regarding the CASA Compact to 
be held in San Leandro on January 30, 2019. 

• The District’s EBDA Ad Hoc will meet January 29, 2019, to discuss the recent 
EBDA Workshop. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:56 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, February 11, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 

 
 

Adopted this 11th day of February 2019 

8 of 71



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
 
DATE: February 4, 2019 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of February 11, 2019 
 Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board of Directors Meeting  
 
Recommendation 
 
Consider a motion to cancel the May 27, 2019, Board of Directors meeting. 
 
Background 
 
The second regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in May 2019 falls on 
Memorial Day, and District offices will be closed.  Staff recommends the Board consider the 
following options: 
 

1. Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board meeting. 
2. Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board meeting and schedule a special meeting for Tuesday, 

May 28, 2019. 
3. Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board meeting and schedule a special meeting for              

June 3, 2019. 
 

If the Board decides to schedule a special meeting for June 3, 2019, Committee meetings 
would be scheduled during the week of Memorial Day. 

9 of 71



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: February 4, 2019 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of February 11, 2019 

Review and Approve Proposed Changes to Policy No. 3060, Communications 
by Members of the Board  

  
Recommendation 
 
Review proposed updates to Policy No. 3060, Communications by Members of the Board, and 
consider approval.   
 
Background 
 
The Board last reviewed and approved Policy 3060, Communications by Members of the Board 
at its regular meeting held May 9, 2016.  This Policy is scheduled to be reviewed by the Board 
every two years.  Staff has reviewed Policy No. 3060, and made minor typographical edits. 
 
Staff recommends the Board consider approval of proposed changes to Policy 3060. 
 
Attachments: Redline version of policy 3060 indicating changes since the May, 2016 version 

Clean version of policy 3060 

10 of 71



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

 
 

Communication by Members of the Board 
of Directors 

 
Effective:   Policy Number 3060  

5/9/2016 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
Policy 
 
Boardmembers are not required to seek prior approval when they communicate with members 
of the public, media representatives, or other publicly elected officials on their own behalf.  
However, when Boardmembers communicate on their own behalf on issues pertaining to USD, 
they should take steps to make sure that their communications are not construed to represent 
the “Board” or “Union Sanitary District”.  
 
Boardmembers are required to seek prior approval from a majority of the Board of Directors 
before expressing a point of view on behalf of the Board. 
 
Purpose 
 
The Board recognizes that individual Boardmembers are also members of the public and may 
want to express their own personal opinions on issues pertaining to USD, or correspond with 
the public, media representatives, or publicly-elected officials. The intent of this policy is to 
ensure that communications by Boardmembers in their individual capacities are not mistaken 
for the views of the entire Board.  The policy is not intended to in any way to limit the freedom 
of individual Boardmembers to communicate on their own behalf with the public, media 
representatives, or other publicly elected officials in the way they see fit. Furthermore, the 
intent of this policy is not to limit a Boardmember’s ability to speak on behalf of the District 
pertaining to items that have been approved by the Board, so long as the position is consistent 
with the Boards action; or pertains to factual details that would be considered common 
knowledge (e.g. number of employees, operating budget).   The policy is also meant to address 
issues regarding compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code section 
54950 et seq. in such communications. 
 
Definitions 
 
Individual refers to a Boardmember acting as an “individual,” not as an 

official “District Representative.” 
 

District Representative refers to a Boardmember acting in his/her role as a “member 
of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District”; i.e., the 
majority of the Board has formally authorized the 
Boardmember to speak on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

 

11 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 2 of 4 
 
 
Media refers to newspapers, magazines, television stations, or electronic 

news outlets, including on-line newspapers, blogs or social media 
sites. 

 
Procedure 
 
1. Letters, e-mails or other electronic correspondence, or other communications to the 

public, media or other publicly-elected officials representing or on behalf of the Board 
of Directors must be approved by a majority of the Board before being sent.  Further, 
the use of any District letterhead or e-mail masthead, which implies that the 
communication is being sent by a District representative, must be approved by a 
majority of the Board. 

 
2. As a courtesy to other Boardmembers, a Boardmember writing in his/her capacity as an 

individual, should request the General Manager to let other Boardmembers know of 
any pending communication with the media or publicly-elected officials via an 
informational email.    

 
3. Correspondence by a Boardmember with the public, media, or publicly-elected officials 

as an “individual” should adhere to the following guidelines: 
 
a. The communication should note that it is not being sent on behalf of the 

entire Board, but by an individual Boardmember.  When a 
communication is sent on behalf of the entire Board, it will be signed by 
the individual Boardmember with the language, “on behalf of the Union 
Sanitary District Board.” 

 
b. If the communication expresses a viewpoint contrary to the majority 

position of the Board, the communication should so note. 
 
c. Boardmembers should not copy the rest of the Board on 

communications, in order to avoid an inadvertent Brown Act violation. 
 
d. Boardmembers should be cautious about opining on future actions by 

the Board and should not opine on the Board’s position on an item that 
has not been before the Board. 

 
e. In certain instances, such as communications regarding broad policy 

concerns or future agenda items, a Boardmember should consider 
referring questions or communications to staff for a response on behalf 
of the District. 

 

12 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 3 of 4 
 
 

f.   Boardmembers may request as a future agenda item that the full Board 
consider responding to or communicating with the public, media, or 
publicly-elected officials, in which case the communication would be on 
behalf of the Board and not an individual. 

 
g.   Email communications to individual Board Members, or the entire Board 

of Directors, on District business and directed to official email addresses 
are public records and subject to disclosure. 

 
4. Boardmembers may indicate their affiliation with the USD Board of Directors without 

obtaining prior approval of the Board when they endorse a candidate for political office, 
or a ballot measure, and when they sign onto letters of support.  However, an individual 
Boardm Member may not make an endorsement on behalf of the entire Board or the 
District without prior approval. 

 
5. Public meetings are one of the best ways for the Board to communicate with the public.  

Therefore, Boardmembers should use opportunities that arise at Board meetings during 
discussion of agenda items to articulate reasons for their decisions to the public. 

 
Management Responsibility 
 
The General Manager will be responsible for keeping all Boardmembers informed of media 
contacts made by Boardmembers when they are acting as a “District Representative.” 
 
Management will respond to any inquiries or questions by the media, public, or other publicly-
elected officials to individual Boardmembers that are forwarded by that Boardmember to 
Management for response.  Boardmembers may also request that the General Manager place 
an item they feel requires a response on a future agenda pursuant to Board policies for the 
Board’s full consideration.  Agendizing the item will provide the public with the with the 
opportunity to meaningfully engage with the Board on any issues raised by the inquiry or 
question 
 
Management is also responsible for ensuring staff reports clearly articulate the reasons for 
their recommendations. In order to provide members of the public with the opportunity to 
inform themselves on issues being discussed by the Board, these staff reports are provided to 
the public in advance of the Board meeting via the District’s website.   
 
This revision supersedes the versions listed below, which are no longer effective. 
 

Title Policy # Effective Date 
Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 
by Members of the Board of Directors 

3060 7/1991 

Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 3060 12/2000 

13 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 4 of 4 
 
 
by Members of the Board of Directors 
Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 
by Members of the Board of Directors 

3060 02/2008 

Communication by Members of the Board of Directors 3060 5/9/2016 
 
 
Author/owner: General Manager 
Approved by:    Reviewed and Approved by Board May 9, 2016 
Reviewers:  Board of Directors, General Manager 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review Frequency:   Every 2 years 
Next Review:    May 2018February 2021 
 

14 of 71



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

 
 

Communication by Members of the Board 
of Directors 

 
Effective:   Policy Number 3060  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
Policy 
 
Boardmembers are not required to seek prior approval when they communicate with members 
of the public, media representatives, or other publicly elected officials on their own behalf.  
However, when Boardmembers communicate on their own behalf on issues pertaining to USD 
they should take steps to make sure that their communications are not construed to represent 
the “Board” or “Union Sanitary District”.  
 
Boardmembers are required to seek prior approval from a majority of the Board of Directors 
before expressing a point of view on behalf of the Board. 
 
Purpose 
 
The Board recognizes that individual Boardmembers are also members of the public and may 
want to express their own personal opinions on issues pertaining to USD, or correspond with 
the public, media representatives, or publicly-elected officials. The intent of this policy is to 
ensure that communications by Boardmembers in their individual capacities are not mistaken 
for the views of the entire Board.  The policy is not intended to in any way limit the freedom of 
individual Boardmembers to communicate on their own behalf with the public, media 
representatives, or other publicly elected officials in the way they see fit. Furthermore, the 
intent of this policy is not to limit a Boardmember’s ability to speak on behalf of the District 
pertaining to items that have been approved by the Board, so long as the position is consistent 
with Board action; or pertains to factual details that would be considered common knowledge 
(e.g. number of employees, operating budget).   The policy is also meant to address issues 
regarding compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code section 54950 
et seq. in such communications. 
 
Definitions 
 
Individual refers to a Boardmember acting as an “individual,” not as an 

official “District Representative.” 
 

District Representative refers to a Boardmember acting in his/her role as a “member 
of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District”; i.e., the 
majority of the Board has formally authorized the 
Boardmember to speak on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

 

15 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 2 of 4 
 
 
Media refers to newspapers, magazines, television stations, or electronic 

news outlets, including on-line newspapers, blogs or social media 
sites. 

 
Procedure 
 
1. Letters, e-mails or other electronic correspondence, or other communications to the 

public, media or other publicly-elected officials representing or on behalf of the Board 
of Directors must be approved by a majority of the Board before being sent.  Further, 
the use of any District letterhead or e-mail masthead, which implies that the 
communication is being sent by a District representative, must be approved by a 
majority of the Board. 

 
2. As a courtesy to other Boardmembers, a Boardmember writing in his/her capacity as an 

individual, should request the General Manager to let other Boardmembers know of 
any pending communication with the media or publicly-elected officials via an 
informational email.    

 
3. Correspondence by a Boardmember with the public, media, or publicly-elected officials 

as an “individual” should adhere to the following guidelines: 
 
a. The communication should note that it is not being sent on behalf of the 

entire Board, but by an individual Boardmember.  When a 
communication is sent on behalf of the entire Board, it will be signed by 
the individual Boardmember with the language, “on behalf of the Union 
Sanitary District Board.” 

 
b. If the communication expresses a viewpoint contrary to the majority 

position of the Board, the communication should so note. 
 
c. Boardmembers should not copy the rest of the Board on 

communications, in order to avoid an inadvertent Brown Act violation. 
 
d. Boardmembers should be cautious about opining on future actions by 

the Board and should not opine on the Board’s position on an item that 
has not been before the Board. 

 
e. In certain instances, such as communications regarding broad policy 

concerns or future agenda items, a Boardmember should consider 
referring questions or communications to staff for a response on behalf 
of the District. 

 

16 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 3 of 4 
 
 

f.   Boardmembers may request as a future agenda item that the full Board 
consider responding to or communicating with the public, media, or 
publicly-elected officials, in which case the communication would be on 
behalf of the Board and not an individual. 

 
g.   Email communications to individual Board Members, or the entire Board 

of Directors, on District business and directed to official email addresses 
are public records and subject to disclosure. 

 
4. Boardmembers may indicate their affiliation with the USD Board of Directors without 

obtaining prior approval of the Board when they endorse a candidate for political office, 
or a ballot measure, and when they sign onto letters of support.  However, an individual 
Boardmember may not make an endorsement on behalf of the entire Board or the 
District without prior approval. 

 
5. Public meetings are one of the best ways for the Board to communicate with the public.  

Therefore, Boardmembers should use opportunities that arise at Board meetings during 
discussion of agenda items to articulate reasons for their decisions to the public. 

 
Management Responsibility 
 
The General Manager will be responsible for keeping all Boardmembers informed of media 
contacts made by Boardmembers when they are acting as a “District Representative.” 
 
Management will respond to any inquiries or questions by the media, public, or other publicly-
elected officials to individual Boardmembers that are forwarded by that Boardmember to 
Management for response.  Boardmembers may also request that the General Manager place 
an item they feel requires a response on a future agenda pursuant to Board policies for the 
Board’s full consideration.  Agendizing the item will provide the public with the opportunity to 
meaningfully engage with the Board on any issues raised by the inquiry or question 
 
Management is also responsible for ensuring staff reports clearly articulate the reasons for 
their recommendations. In order to provide members of the public with the opportunity to 
inform themselves on issues being discussed by the Board, these staff reports are provided to 
the public in advance of the Board meeting via the District’s website.   
 
This revision supersedes the versions listed below, which are no longer effective. 
 

Title Policy # Effective Date 
Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 
by Members of the Board of Directors 

3060 7/1991 

Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 
by Members of the Board of Directors 

3060 12/2000 

17 of 71



Communication Policy Number 3060 
by Members of the Board of Directors Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Communication with the Media and Publicly Elected Officials 
by Members of the Board of Directors 

3060 02/2008 

Communication by Members of the Board of Directors 3060 5/9/2016 
 
 
Author/owner: General Manager 
Approved by:    Reviewed and Approved by Board _____, 2019 
Reviewers:  Board of Directors, General Manager 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review Frequency:   Every 2 years 
Next Review:    February 2021 
 

18 of 71



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

February 4, 2019 

Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 

Agenda Item No. 10 – Meeting of February 11, 2019 
Receive Update on Private Lateral Outreach Video and Provide Direction 

Recommendation 

Receive an update regarding USD’s private lateral informational video and provide direction as 
necessary. 

Background 

The Board previously received results of a Lateral Study conducted to understand current and 
possible future problems associated with private sewer laterals. The condition assessment 
revealed that in general, laterals were in fair condition, but various maintenance issues existed 
that could result in lateral stoppages. 

Board members indicated interest in development of an educational outreach video to explain 
homeowner responsibility, provide information about what to do to prevent lateral stoppages, 
and recommend actions homeowners should take in the event of a stoppage. 

Staff conducted online research of outreach videos. Keeping in mind that the majority of trouble 
calls the District responds to are homeowner lateral issues, and that the advent of online media 
has led to viewer preference of brief videos over lengthy presentations, Staff decided to develop 
a short informational video (approximately three minutes long) that educates customers in non-
technical, easy-to-understand format. 

19 of 71



USD Collections staff often encounters homeowners who have received erroneous information 
about their responsibility from plumbers who are not aware that rules differ from community to 
community. The video will be a resource staff can access from the field to share with property 
owners when they respond to trouble calls. It will be also be a resource for staff receiving 
telephone calls at the front desk who can then guide customers to it on our website. The video 
will include the following information for customers: 

• Homeowner responsibility
• Steps homeowners can take to avoid stoppages
• What to do when a stoppage occurs
• Tips for hiring plumbing contractors

Crux Jinx productions, which produced USD’s recent District overview video, is contracted to 
develop the private lateral outreach video. During planning and scripting of the video, it was 
suggested we develop a simple storyboard indicating how images will flow with the narration. 
Staff worked with the Crux Jinx to develop a storyboard and will use it to demonstrate how video 
images will support the narrative. 

Attachments: 

Video script  
Video storyboard 

20 of 71



USD PRIVATE LATERAL OUTREACH VIDEO SCRIPT 

NARRATOR 

For over 100 years Union Sanitary District has safely and 
responsibly provided wastewater collection, treatment 
and disposal services to the Tri-city area. We encourage 
our Fremont, Newark, and Union City customers to be 
informed about your sewer laterals and we offer some 
suggestions about what to do if you think you have a 
lateral problem. 

NARRATOR 

Your sewer lateral is a pipe that connects the plumbing 
system in your residence or business to USD’s main 
sewer line. Property owners are responsible for 
maintenance, repair, or replacement of their entire 
sewer lateral up to its connection to USD’s main line. 
This includes portions located under sidewalks and 
streets. 

(Graphic or animation of house lateral – see newsletter 
graphic) 

NARRATOR 

A failed, neglected, or improperly maintained lateral 
can lead to costly repairs and messy backups into your 
property, buildings, neighborhoods, and local 
waterways, which ultimately lead to San Francisco Bay. 

A lateral issue can show up in several ways. Most 
commonly, a lateral stoppage will result in an 
overflowing toilet or lateral clean out. A lateral clean 
out is an access point to your sewer lateral. It is usually 
found in your front yard. 

(Insert Clean Out image.) 

NARRATOR 

21 of 71



If you believe you have an issue with your sewer, we 
recommend that you contact Union Sanitary District as 
soon as possible. Union Sanitary District has trained 
personnel who respond 24/7 and can help determine if 
the problem is in your lateral.  

(Insert video of customer interacting with District 
representative)  

NARRATOR 

If it’s determined that the sewer issue is within your 
lateral, Union Sanitary District recommends you contact 
a licensed drain cleaning company or plumber. Most 
sewer lateral issues can be addressed by a cleaning. 
Once the lateral has been cleaned it’s also 
recommended that a DVD recording of the inspection 
be conducted by a licensed plumbing contractor. A DVD 
inspection can identify roots or structural issues that 
may affect your lateral’s operation, and if left 
unattended, could require costly repairs.  

(Insert actual video of root intrusion) 

NARRATOR 

You should also make sure the equipment has the 
ability to capture lineal footage from the camera access 
point along the path of the inspection route to measure 
actual distance that will help pin-point any defects that 
may need to be addressed.  

(Insert video of actual footage display during video 
inspection)  

NARRATOR 

USD suggests you observe the inspection, so you can 
ask questions while the camera is in your lateral. USD 
staff can review your video at our offices and answer 
your questions at no charge. 

22 of 71



If a problem is found in your lateral, before any work 
begins, a USD repair permit is required (even for repairs 
on private property). 

If you are hiring a contractor to make repairs, we advise 
obtaining estimates from more than one licensed, 
insured plumbing contractor. They can be researched 
under listings on the internet such as “Plumbing Drain & 
Sewer Cleaning”, or “Sewer Contractors”.  

To avoid lateral problems, follow these do’s and don’ts: 

V/O to accompany “yes” checklist below as points come 
up one at a time: 

Only human waste, soaps, toilet paper, and food ground 
in a garbage disposal should go down your drains. 

GRAPHIC comes up with V/O: 

 Human Waste
 Soaps
 Toilet paper
 Food Ground in a garbage disposal

GRAPHIC continues to fill in w/VO below noting “x” or 
“don’t” info: 

Don’t put wipes (even those labeled flushable), fats, 
oils, grease, medicines, or chemicals down your drains. 

× Wipes 
× Fats, Oils, & Grease 
× Medicines 
× Chemicals 

NARRATOR 

Keep your lateral healthy. You’ll protect your property 
investment, public health, and the environment. 

If you have further questions, feel free to call us at (510) 
477-7500 for more information. 

23 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 39  |  Shots: 39  |  Duration: 1:18  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 6, 2018

Page: 1 / 3

1A 0:00

“For over 100 years”

2A 0:02

 “Union Sanitary District has safely and responsibly provided wastewater 
collection, treatment and disposal services to the Tri-city area.” 

3A 0:04

“We encourage our Fremont, Newark, and Union City customers”

4A 0:06

“ to be informed about your sewer laterals and we offer some suggestions 
about what to do if you think you have a lateral problem.” 

5A 0:08

“Your sewer lateral

6A 0:10

is a pipe that connects the plumbing system in your residence or business 
to USD’s main sewer line. 

7A 0:12

Property owners are responsible for maintenance, repair, or replacement of 
their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to USD’s main line. 

8A 0:14

Property owners are responsible for maintenance, repair, or replacement of 
their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to USD’s main line. 

9A 0:16

Property owners are responsible for maintenance, repair, or replacement of 
their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to USD’s main line.  

10A 0:18

This includes portions located 
under sidewalks.

11A 0:20

A neglected or improperly maintained lateral can lead to costly repairs and 
messy backups into your

12A 0:22

“property, 

13A 0:24

buildings

14A 0:26

neighborhoods

15A 0:28

local waterways, which ultimately 
lead 

24 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 39  |  Shots: 39  |  Duration: 1:18  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 6, 2018

Page: 2 / 3

16A 0:30

to San Francisco Bay.

17A 0:32

A lateral issue can show up in several ways. Most commonly, a lateral 
stoppage will result

18A 0:34

in an overflowing toilet 

19A 0:36

 or lateral clean out.

20A 0:38

A lateral clean out is an access 
point to your sewer lateral.

21A 0:40

 It is usually found in your front 
yard.

22A 0:42

If you believe you have an issue with your sewer, we recommend that you 
contact Union Sanitary District as soon as possible. 

23A 0:44

Union Sanitary District has trained 
personnel 

24A 0:46

who respond 24/7 and can help 
determine if the

25A 0:48

problem is in your lateral. 

26A 0:50

If it’s determined that the sewer 
issue is within your lateral

27A 0:52

Union Sanitary District recommends you contact a licensed drain cleaning 
company or plumber. 

28A 0:54

Most sewer lateral issues can be 
addressed by a cleaning.

29A 0:56

Once the lateral has been cleaned, 
it’s also recommended 

30A 0:58

that a DVD recording of the inspection be conducted by a licensed 
plumbing contractor. 

25 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 39  |  Shots: 39  |  Duration: 1:18  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 6, 2018

Page: 3 / 3

31A 1:00

A DVD inspection

32A 1:02

A DVD inspection

33A 1:04

can identify roots or structural 
issues

34A 1:06

that may affect your lateral’s operation, and if left unattended,that may 
affect your lateral’s operation, and if left unattended,

35A 1:08

 could require costly repairs.

36A 1:10

You should also make sure the equipment has the ability to capture lineal 
footage from the camera access point...

37A 1:12

along the path of the inspection route to measure actual distance that will 
help pin-point any defects that may need to be addressed.

38A 1:14

USD suggests you observe the inspection, so you can ask questions while 
the camera is in your lateral. 

39A 1:16

USD staff can review your video at our offices and answer your questions 
free of charge.

26 of 71



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: February 11, 2019 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of February 11, 2019 
 Provide Direction to Staff on Preparation of Board Compensation Survey 
  
Recommendation 
 
That the Board of Directors review and provide direction to staff on the preparation of the 
Board Compensation Survey. 
 
Background 
 
Periodically, staff conducts a survey of comparable agencies to evaluate Board compensation.  
Staff is seeking feedback and direction from the Board on which agencies should be surveyed 
and what specific information the Board would like surveyed. 

 
 
Attachment:  April 2018 Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 
 
 
 
 

27 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Castro Valley 

Sanitary 

District 

Starting June 2018 the compensation 

will be $220/6 mtgs max

No District 

contribution
No No

District provides four 

Board Members with 

tablets

No

Central 

Contra Costa 

Sanitary 

District

$185 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month

No Central San 

contribution

As of 3/17/16, eligible for 

mileage reimbursement ONLY 

as related to conferences

No
Central San provides 

iPads for Directors
Yes

Contra Costa 

Water 

District

$100 per meeting/10 meetings per 

month (one meeting fee maximum 

paid per day)

No District 

contribution
Yes, mileage reimbursement No No Yes

1 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey28 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Delta Diablo
$170 per meeting/approx. 20 meetings 

per year (1 Board meeting per month + 

about 8 Committee meetings per year) 

No District 

contribution

Mileage reimbursement for 

travel related to conferences at 

IRS mileage rate

No No

Yes.  By Administrative 

Policy 4030, Board 

Members cannot 

collect benefits from 

another public agency, 

and do not. All Board 

Members elect to 

receive coverage only 

from the District.

2 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey29 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Dublin San 

Ramon 

Services 

District 

$146 per day for each day of service to 

the District, up to a maximum of 10 

days per month

The District matches 

Board Member 

contributions to 457 

plan by 25%, up to 

$10 per calendar 

month ‐ provided 

that a director 

voluntarily 

contributes at least 

$20 per month, the 

District matches that 

contribution up to 

$10 per month or 

25% of the monthly 

contribution, 

whichever is less.

Travel to and from a destination using 

private automobiles is allowable at the 

IRS mileage rate (travel to and from 

the District for the purpose of 

attending Board meetings is not 

eligible for reimbursement). This 

applies so long as the amount so 

calculated does not exceed the cost of 

pre‐purchased round‐trip coach class 

airfare plus ground transportation that 

would be incurred for the same trip. If 

that is the case, the expense shall be 

limited to the cost of pre‐purchased 

round‐trip coach class airfare plus 

estimated ground transportation. 

When more than one District official 

travels in the same private 

automobile, allowance will be made to 

only the owner or lessor of the vehicle 

used. No credit for airfare or the 

avoided cost of a second automobile 

shall be paid to the second person. If 

the General Manager determines that 

air transportation is not feasible due to 

work schedules, time involved or other 

similar reasons, an allowance for the 

use of a private automobile shall be 

determined on the basis of the IRS 

mileage rate and shall not be subject 

to the limitation specified herein.

No Yes Yes

East Bay 

Municipal 

Utility District

$1,263 per month (effective February 

1, 2017) and 2 meetings per month

No District 

contribution

Mileage reimbursed per IRS 

rate
No

District provides iPads 

for Directors that 

want them (currently 

3).  For those that use 

their personal iPads, 

the District pays a $50 

stipend.

Yes

3 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey30 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Fairfield‐

Suisun Sewer 

District 

147.32 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month. Can be increased  any year by 

Board action.   

No District 

contribution
No No

Yes, if participating in 

the paperless agenda 

and request a loaner 

iPad

No.  The City provides 

primary benefits as the 

Board Members serve 

as the City Council. 

However, the District 

provides a health 

expense 

reimbursement for 

health‐related out‐of‐

pocket expenses not 

covered or reimbursed 

anywhere else ‐ City, 

etc. The maximum 

amount for 

reimbursement is 

$6,339 for 2018. This 

amount adjust each 

year based on the 

October SF CPI‐W

4 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey31 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Inland 

Empire 

Utilities 

Agency 

$225 per meeting/10 meetings per 

month

No District 

contribution
IRS Mileage Yes Yes yes 

Ironhouse 

Sanitary 

District 

$170 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month

Optional, if chosen 

to enroll, cost to 

District $10/mo.

Eligible for mikleage 

reimbursement ONLY related 

to conferences.

No No Yes

5 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey32 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Mt. View 

Sanitary 

District 

$220.00 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month

No District 

contribution

Mileage reimbursed per IRS 

rate
No No Yes

Napa 

Sanitation 

District 

$218 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month

No District 

contribution

reimburse mileage for 

conferences and trainings
N/A

$20 allowance for 

iPad fees

No.  Two Members 

serve on the City 

Council, and one 

serves on the Board of 

Supervisors.  Those 

entities provide 

primary benefits.

6 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey33 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Oro Loma 

Sanitary 

District 

$260 per meeting/6 meetings per 

month

6.32% of salary ‐ 

District 

contribution

Mileage reimbursed per IRS 

rate
No

 Yes, if requested by 

Board Member

Yes, but one Member 

serves on East Bay 

Dischargers Authority 

(EBDA), and another 

serves on the Alameda 

County Waste 

Management 

Authority (Stop Waste 

Board).

7 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey34 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Union 

Sanitary 

District

$212.10 per meeting/max of 1 

meeting per day and 6 meetings per 

month

$50/month

Mileage reimbursement for 

travel related to trainings / 

conferences

No
District provides iPads 

to directors

Yes, but one member 

serves on EBDA and is 

compensated by the 

EBDA Commission for 

meetings attended.

8 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey35 of 71



Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits 

April 2018

Agency Stipend/Max. Compensable Mtgs Deferred Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers/ iPads

Agency Provides 

Primary Benefits or 

Compensation

Vallejo Flood 

and 

Wastewater 

District 

 City Appointees (7) $100 per month 

(regardless of # of meetings held or 

attended) – County Appointee (1) $100 

per meeting attended, max of 3 per 

month

No District 

contribution
No No No

No.  The City provides 

primary benefits as the 

Board Members serve 

as the City Council and 

one Solano County 

Board of Supervisor.

West County 

Wastewater 

District 

Up to $265.35 per meeting/6 meetings 

per month

No District 

contribution
$32/month Yes

District provides 

tablets to directors
Yes

9 H:\BusServ\HRC\Board of Directors\2018 Board Comp Benefits Survey\2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey36 of 71



 

  
Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 

Thursday, January 17, 2019, at 9:30 a.m. 
Prepared by: P. Eldredge 

 
• Commissioners Mendall, Cutter, Handley, Walters, and Johnson were present. 

 
• The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 

Minutes, List of Disbursements, and Treasurer’s Report.  
 

• The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the Managers Advisory, Financial 
Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operations & Maintenance, and Personnel committees. The 
following items were discussed: 

 
• General Managers Report - The General Manager reminded the Commissioners of the JPA 

workshop the following day at USD offices, and that it is a public meeting. Next month (February) 
marks the 45th anniversary of the JPA. Bruce Wolfe, recently retired from the Regional Water 
Board, will provide historical information at the next Commission meeting. The Commission 
would like to record Mr. Wolfe’s presentation. There was a suggestion to invite alternates to the 
meeting. There was a request to discuss changing the time of the regular EBDA Commission 
meetings to later in the day due to scheduling conflicts. A request is to make the change sooner 
than July 1st. Staff will coordinate with the Commissioners to come up with a time suitable for 
everyone. 

 
• Manager’s Advisory Committee met with the General Manager on January 16, 2019. The MAC 

discussed EBDA’s participation in a technology advisory group organized by Isle Technologies, 
which evaluates new and emerging technologies for the wastewater sector. The MAC 
recommended that EBDA try it for one year, providing feedback to the Commission. The cost is 
$20,000 per year and will come under the Special Studies budget. The GM will bring a resolution 
to the Commission for consideration. 

 
• Financial Management Committee met with the General Manager on January 16, 2019. There 

was a presentation from PFM Asset Management on investment policy and strategy. Building on 
the feedback from PFM, the Committee’s recommendation is to keep things simple by continuing 
to invest in LAIF and CDs. Staff will evaluate the best option for reinvesting maturing CDs, using 
stated guidelines that will be presented to the Commission for consideration. Staff will also bring 
text updates to the policy to the Commission, to bring it up to date with the Government Code. 
The Committee reviewed the list of disbursements and Treasurer’s report. 

 
• Regulatory Affairs Committee met with the General Manager on January 15, 2019. The GM 

provided an update on the Nutrients Watershed Permit. There is now a draft regional permit. 
There will be one more informal draft in February before the permit is officially released for public 
comment. It does not currently contain any effluent limits, but there are targets for 2024, based 

37 of 71



 

on current performance of nutrient loads and projected growth. BACWA will contribute about 
$500,000 to a new regional study of nature-based solutions to nutrients. Bruce Wolfe’s successor 
will be Mike Montgomery from the EPA. 

 
• Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Committee - The Operations and Maintenance Manager 

met with the O&M Committee on January 14, 2019. The O&M Manager acknowledged USD staff 
for their work on the AEPS Cavitation Study. The HEPS MCC project is still on hold pending 
approval from PG&E. PG&E has stated that documents will be ready by the end of January. He 
explained the Wet Weather SOP document. He also discussed the Transport System Inspection 
and potential costs, and answered questions regarding frequency. The Asset Management draft 
report/update should be available in a couple of weeks. He also discussed the operation of the 
diesel pumps and the Wet Weather SOP during actual wet weather the previous night. Finally, he 
reviewed the status of the RRF Fund at mid-year. 

 
• Personnel Committee met with the GM on January 15, 2019. The GM explained that they 

reviewed and recommended revisions to the 2018/2019 Compensation Plan, including adding 
Flexible Spending Accounts and also improved life insurance, which covers up to the employee’s 
salary. EBDA will tie in with the City of Hayward’s life insurance since they are already handling 
EBDA’s dental and vision benefits. The cost of benefits will increase slightly, but the benefits will 
also increase compared to current levels. A document formalizing the Section 125 cafeteria plan 
is forthcoming. 

 
• Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Issue a Purchase Order for Calendar Year 2019 

to Azyura in the Amount not to Exceed $21,300 for Waterbits Licensing and Reporting Services  
The Regulatory Affairs Committee recommended approval of the P.O. for Azyura, the company 
that manages EBDA’s NPDES data. Azyura utilizes their tools for evaluation, developing questions 
for staff, and catching anomalies and errors. Commissioner Mendall suggested a correction to the 
resolution for clarity, which staff will make.  
 
Commissioner Mendall moved to approve the resolution with the proposed correction. The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Cutter, and approved unanimously, 5-0.  
 
Ayes: Commissioners Mendall, Cutter, Walters, Johnson, and Chair Handley  
Noes: None  
Absent: None  
Abstain: None 

 
• Resolution Approving Revisions to the Authority’s FY 2018/2019 Compensation Plan  

The Commission discussed the plan changes and received clarification regarding the Flexible 
Spending and Life Insurance additions.  
 
Commissioner Cutter moved to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Mendall, and approved unanimously, 5-0.  
 
Ayes: Commissioners Mendall, Cutter, Walters, Johnson, and Chair Handley 
Noes: None  
Absent: None  
Abstain: None 

38 of 71



 

 
• Items from the Commission and Staff - The O&M Manager mentioned that he will update the 

Wet Weather SOP regarding timing of turning on the diesel. Commissioner Cutter shared 
information from a recent BAAQMD retreat she attended regarding generator use, fees, and 
focus on the greater good. 
 

 
 

39 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SECONDARY TREATMENT CAP. IMPROV - DESIGN201180005170077 $66,394.19 $66,394.19HAZEN AND SAWYER1/24/2019 143

DECEMBER 2018 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL30105109170095 $59,036.93 $59,036.93SYNAGRO WEST LLC1/24/2019 110

JOHNSON PAYOUT20190123170089 $36,801.16 $36,801.16PAUL BRADLEY JOHNSON ESTATE1/24/2019 136

EDGE FIREWALL25804170053 $25,071.56 $31,971.56AMS.NET INC1/24/2019 173

EDGE FIREWALL25775 $6,900.001/24/2019 173

CONTROL BOX NO. 1 IMPROVEMENTS158172170109 $28,561.95 $28,561.95WOODARD & CURRAN INC1/24/2019 143

DIGESTER NO. 3 INSP & REHAB173473170126 $4,290.85 $24,740.16CAROLLO ENGINEERS1/31/2019 143

WAS THICKENERS173545 $20,449.311/31/2019 143

ODOR CONTROL ALTERNATIVES STUDY689940CH002170060 $22,199.80 $22,199.80CH2M HILL INC1/24/2019 143

CIP - NOVEMBER 2018235568170122 $3,865.68 $15,823.08BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP1/31/2019

CIP - OCTOBER 2018234437 $11,957.401/31/2019

Page 1 of 1140 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3N0304170134 $89.36 $14,909.72HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS1/31/2019 170

2 PVC CONNECTORS3N0305 $64.971/31/2019 170

4 2" CROSS FITTINGS3N0303 $92.431/31/2019 170

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3N0306 $12,278.841/31/2019 170

6 2" CROSS FITTINGS3N0302 $119.031/31/2019 170

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3N0307 $984.781/31/2019 170

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3N0308 $835.381/31/2019 170

10 PVC CONNECTORS3N0389 $265.281/31/2019 170

20 PVC UNIONS3N0390 $179.651/31/2019

4799.3 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE919577170103 $3,444.24 $13,810.54UNIVAR USA INC1/24/2019 110

4798.4 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE920157 $3,443.591/24/2019 110

4947.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE919574 $3,550.381/24/2019 110

4699.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE919740 $3,372.331/24/2019 110

LABORATORY INFORMATION MGMT SYSTEM1587170130 $13,050.00 $13,050.00ETHOSOFT INC1/31/2019 173

43,240 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34554170058 $5,606.40 $10,908.85CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES1/24/2019 110

40,660 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34593 $5,302.451/24/2019 110

IT MASTER PLAN PROJECT FOR FY191833170093 $10,547.96 $10,547.96SDI PRESENCE LLC1/24/2019 173

CENTRIFUGE SLUDGE CHUTE DUCTING241737170131 $9,749.52 $9,749.52FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY1/31/2019 170

HAZMAT CONSULTING SERVICES2000159722170112 $8,995.21 $8,995.21AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC1/31/2019 171

Page 2 of 1141 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

4697 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE921446170158 $3,370.83 $6,921.43UNIVAR USA INC1/31/2019 110

4947.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE920940 $3,550.601/31/2019 110

LABOR RELATIONS CONSULTING 1/01/19 - 3/31/201922419170078 $6,057.00 $6,057.00IEDA INC1/24/2019 132

42,580 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391313156170146 $5,804.06 $5,804.06POLYDYNE INC1/31/2019 110

42,600 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34614170124 $5,411.36 $5,411.36CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES1/31/2019 110

BOYCE PUMP STATION BYPASS PUMPING PARTS1802073005170148 $1,859.11 $4,414.09R&B COMPANY1/31/2019 170

BOYCE PUMP STATION BYPASS PUMPING PARTS1802073003 $2,554.981/31/2019 170

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1890356002170155 $404.00 $4,189.75SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY1/31/2019 134

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1890356001 $451.551/31/2019 134

ASTD ELECTRIC SUPPLIES1887895002 $2,484.831/31/2019 134

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1887895003 $658.231/31/2019 134

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1887895004 $191.141/31/2019 134

REFUND # 216628627170137 $2,500.00 $3,500.00KB HOME SOUTH BAY, INC.1/31/2019

REFUND # 216618930 $1,000.001/31/2019

REFUND # 216269177170156 $3,300.00 $3,300.00STRATFORD SCHOOL1/31/2019

EMERGENCY OUTFALL OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS20190129170125 $3,025.00 $3,025.00STATE OF CALIFORNIA1/31/2019 143

SERVICE GEN#2 TROUBLESHOOTING907101170105 $1,951.00 $2,754.50VINCENT ELECTRIC MOTOR CO1/24/2019 170

SERVICE GEN#1 OUPUT VOLTAGE907105 $803.501/24/2019 170

Page 3 of 1142 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

WINCH REPAIR W10059083628726170049 $987.40 $2,646.83AIRGAS NCN1/24/2019 170

CYLINDER RENTAL9958954980 $729.611/24/2019 170

2 CYL ARGON9083865190 $649.221/24/2019

1 CYL AR CD25409083582933 $161.621/24/2019

1 CYL ARGON9084103403 $118.981/24/2019 170

ALVARADO-NILES ROAD SS REHABILITATION857170119 $2,457.00 $2,457.00BART - BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT1/31/2019 143

WIRELESS SERV 12/21/2018 - 01/20/20199822657734170159 $2,410.65 $2,410.65VERIZON WIRELESS1/31/2019

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES - JANUARY 201942286170066 $1,405.00 $2,375.00DEL CONTE'S LANDSCAPING INC1/24/2019

WEED ABATEMENT WORK JANUARY 201942285 $970.001/24/2019 170

1 BALL VALVE9034723180170073 $53.27 $2,338.64GRAINGER INC1/24/2019 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9038742152 $774.911/24/2019

1 FLOODLIGHT9037133460 $240.861/24/2019 170

1 PR ROLL DOWN HIP WADERS9035295998 $87.751/24/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9035303461 $1,181.851/24/2019

SERVICE CALL: BLD 70 BOILER190102342170114 $2,152.77 $2,152.77AIRTECH MECHANICAL INC1/31/2019 121

FIBER INTERNET BACKUP - JANUARY 201974669702170065 $2,004.87 $2,004.87COMCAST OF CALIFORNIA,1/24/2019 173

ALCHEMY GOLD MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT RENEWAL9000844213170087 $2,000.00 $2,000.00OPEN TEXT1/24/2019 173

1 BATTERY TESTER459548675833170110 $1,766.51 $1,766.51AMAZON.COM LLC1/24/2019 170

1 EA PUSAR BLACKBOX W/ LCD DISPLAY104470170142 $1,715.59 $1,715.59MUNIQUIP, LLC1/31/2019 171

Page 4 of 1143 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 CHLORINE SENSOR11280535170074 $1,683.57 $1,683.57HACH COMPANY1/24/2019

47.39 TONS 3/4" CL II AB9666170106 $1,664.34 $1,664.34VON EUW TRUCKING1/24/2019 123

GRIT HAULING 12/31/1819010735170154 $766.67 $1,648.34S&S TRUCKING1/31/2019 110

GRIT HAULING 01/03/1919011045 $881.671/31/2019 110

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - DEC 2018AKCY312170079 $804.81 $1,473.15IRON MOUNTAIN1/24/2019 141

DATA/MEDIA OFF-SITE STORAGE - DECEMBER 2018201779046 $304.921/24/2019 173

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - DEC 2018AJYD887 $363.421/24/2019 141

4 CLAMPING TWO-PIECE SHAFT COLLARS83987859170084 $108.71 $1,424.60MCMASTER SUPPLY INC1/24/2019 170

2 LONG-LIFE RECHARGE NO MAINT LARGE-CELL BATTERIES83668241 $104.731/24/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS83973115 $75.031/24/2019 170

12 ROLLS LIGHT-DUTY FOAM MOUNTING TAPE84425423 $97.521/24/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84082364 $683.941/24/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS83804224 $230.171/24/2019 172

1 EA CLAMPING SHAFT COLLAR & ON/OFF VALVE84201462 $124.501/24/2019 170

12/18 - ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES20181210170111 $1,406.47 $1,406.47AMAZON.COM LLC1/24/2019

12/03/18 - 12/31/18 GUARD AT DISTRICT GATE11742170052 $1,380.00 $1,380.00AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY1/24/2019 121

Page 5 of 1144 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 STAMP13098650170055 $60.35 $1,379.31BLAISDELL'S1/24/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13101020 $140.311/24/2019 170

6 BINDERS13097600 $8.591/24/2019 170

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13079930 $250.631/24/2019 141

1 OFFICE CHAIR13075140 $546.681/24/2019 144

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13092010 $372.751/24/2019 141

EXP REIMB: AIRFARE & REGIS FEE FOR 2019 NACWA WINTER CONF20190128170138 $1,346.95 $1,346.95ARMANDO LOPEZ1/31/2019 110

1 IPS SOLAR ARRAY INVERTOR FAN MOTOR5199306170117 $1,309.68 $1,309.68ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY1/31/2019 170

TRAVEL REIMB: LODGING/PER DIEM/MILEAGE-CAPPO 201920190130170157 $1,275.80 $1,275.80KIM TRUONG1/31/2019 136

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - JAN 20191837562170086 $1,245.43 $1,245.43MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP1/24/2019 171

ANNUAL PHONE AND NETWORK SUPPORT - JAN 201917423170082 $1,225.00 $1,225.00LOOKINGPOINT INC1/24/2019 173

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS85088151170140 $280.75 $1,206.65MCMASTER SUPPLY INC1/31/2019

1 FIBERGLASS WASHDOWN ENCLOSURE84666948 $925.901/31/2019 170

SAFETY SHOES: S. SOTH820153166170149 $204.27 $1,182.58RED WING BUS ADVANTAGE ACCT1/31/2019 111

SAFETY SHOES: A. FARSAI820153079 $176.971/31/2019 111

SAFETY SHOES: J. POWELL820152967 $208.001/31/2019 121

SAFETY SHOES: R. LEBON820154216 $208.001/31/2019 123

SAFETY SHOES: A. DIOSDADO820153109 $204.271/31/2019 123

SAFETY SHOES: A. BERLING820153503 $181.071/31/2019 111

Page 6 of 1145 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

3846 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE907624170057 $1,094.63 $1,094.63BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC.1/24/2019 121

SERV TO 11/30/18 PLANT - GAS ONLY784820190102170088 $1,011.79 $1,011.79PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC1/24/2019 110

SECONDARY DIGESTER 2  4" WEDGE GATE VALVE241563170071 $970.77 $970.77FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY1/24/2019 170

SERV:  12/13/18 - 01/12/1912478734170118 $758.03 $954.07AT&T1/31/2019

SERV:  12/13/18 - 01/12/1912478738 $87.351/31/2019

SERV:  12/13/18 - 01/12/1912478736 $42.821/31/2019

SERV:  12/13/18 - 01/12/1912478737 $65.871/31/2019

112 COLD PATCHES17820754170147 $928.49 $928.49QUIKRETE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA1/31/2019 121

ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT31609170123 $832.36 $832.36CALERO HOLDINGS INC1/31/2019 173

ANNUAL FIRE OPERATIONAL PERMIT20190101170102 $828.00 $828.00CITY OF UNION CITY1/24/2019 170

DI WATER SYSTEM903833368170070 $467.34 $827.34EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES1/24/2019 170

DI WATER SYSTEM903838880 $360.001/24/2019 170

3 TRACTOR CAMERA PIGTAIL CABLES42567170162 $798.62 $798.62WECO INDUSTRIES LLC1/31/2019

TEST (6) FUME HOODS AND CALIBRATE214299170096 $792.00 $792.00TECHNICAL SAFETY SERVICES INC1/24/2019 170

EXP REIMB: BS WG & FAST RECOGNTIONS20190116170056 $724.73 $724.73LAURIE BRENNER1/24/2019

GRIT HAULING 12/27/1819010313170092 $712.55 $712.55S&S TRUCKING1/24/2019 110

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE96128170151 $687.46 $687.46ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION1/31/2019 170

PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT20190124170144 $667.84 $667.84PETTY CASH1/31/2019

COURIER SVCS: DEC 2018 DAILY MAIL/1 BOARDMEMBER DELIVERIES10238170072 $660.00 $660.00FREMONT EXPRESS COURIER SVC1/24/2019 141

Page 7 of 1146 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

7.90 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R1971381170075 $655.50 $655.50HANSON AGGREGATES INC1/24/2019 123

AWS CLOUD STORAGE - DECEMBER 2018418472170129 $646.15 $646.15DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC1/31/2019 173

AWS CLOUD STORAGE - NOVEMBER 2018417363170068 $643.80 $643.80DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC1/24/2019 173

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES603284738170135 $613.98 $613.98HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO1/31/2019 134

METRO MOBILE ANNUAL RADIO SERVICE - JAN 2019190157170085 $599.08 $599.08METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC1/24/2019 170

SERV TO: 01/17/18-BENSON ROAD4071038120190122170116 $101.82 $589.18ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT1/31/2019 110

SERV TO: 01/17/18-BENSON ROAD4071037120190122 $487.361/31/2019 110

5 OXYGEN SENSORS365990170091 $576.19 $576.19RKI INSTRUMENTS INC1/24/2019 170

WIRELESS INTERNET BACKUP - JANUARY1120378150170100 $528.30 $528.30TPX COMMUNICATIONS1/24/2019

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES7768485200170153 $508.30 $508.30RS HUGHES CO INC1/31/2019 134

1 HFD3020 BREAKER5198489170051 $502.63 $502.63ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY1/24/2019

REFUND # 216589825170047 $500.00 $500.00ABOVE ALL PLUMBING, INC.1/24/2019

REFUND # 2164410009170048 $500.00 $500.00ADVANCED REPIPE SPECIALIST INC1/24/2019

REFUND # 2165710008170069 $500.00 $500.00DRAIN DOCTOR1/24/2019

REFUND # 216469260170080 $500.00 $500.00SHAOZHEN LIANG1/24/2019

REFUND # 216459884170097 $500.00 $500.00TED KLEIN PLUMBING1/24/2019

14 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS593910170059 $485.10 $485.10CALTEST ANALYTICAL LABORATORY1/24/2019 113

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - MONTHLY CHARGE MONITORING AGREEMENT127110170101 $133.33 $483.33TRI-SIGNAL INTEGRATION INC1/24/2019 123

SERVICE: HORN ALARM IN CONTROL BLDG99347 $350.001/24/2019 122

Page 8 of 1147 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 TONER13112590170120 $231.23 $482.02BLAISDELL'S1/31/2019 120

1 2019 DIARY13088120 $63.641/31/2019 113

1 TONER13106620 $172.341/31/2019 130

1 DZ MARKERS13105560 $14.811/31/2019 130

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE54K156477170128 $268.66 $477.71CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 21/31/2019

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL54K156478 $17.221/31/2019 122

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS54K156479 $191.831/31/2019

2ND QTR FY19 ALT COMP SPECIAL RECOGNITION20190129170152 $450.00 $450.00THERESA RODRIGUEZ1/31/2019

EXP REIMB: TRAVEL EXPS CWEA WORKSHOP & BOARD MTG20190128170143 $446.61 $446.61SHAWN NESGIS1/31/2019 120

PLANT MAINTENANCE - JAN 201972845170063 $431.86 $431.86CITYLEAF INC1/24/2019 150

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS54K154974170062 $192.35 $423.57CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 21/24/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE54K154972 $214.001/24/2019

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL54K154973 $17.221/24/2019 122

LEGAL SVCS:  FREMONT & PASEO PADRE LS IMPROVEMENTS105439170139 $423.50 $423.50MCINERNEY & DILLON, P.C.1/31/2019 143

NEWARK BASIN MASTER PLAN/PACP UPDATE158518170164 $421.64 $421.64WOODARD & CURRAN INC1/31/2019 143

LEGAL SERVICES - CALPER AUDIT- UNIFORMS1472379170081 $405.00 $405.00LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE1/24/2019 132

WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATOR GRADE IV EXAM - M. FARSAI20190117170094 $365.00 $365.00SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES1/24/2019 110

ASTD PIPE FITTINGS5824935170136 $293.04 $307.11HOSE & FITTINGS ETC1/31/2019 123

4 EA 3C-BULK NON-VALVED NIPPLES5824054 $14.071/31/2019 120

Page 9 of 1148 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

DECEMBER 2018 SERVICE FEE145133170090 $307.04 $307.04PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC1/24/2019

LAB SUPPLIES8084894235170161 $28.97 $240.64VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC1/31/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8084900283 $211.671/31/2019 113

SAFETY SHOES: M. DELA ROSA21996400170054 $208.00 $208.00BECK'S SHOES1/24/2019 122

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE11334125170121 $189.70 $189.70BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS1/31/2019 143

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9084153538170113 $177.10 $177.10AIRGAS NCN1/31/2019 122

E-WASTE REMOVAL & RECYCLING29894170064 $175.00 $175.00CIWA, INC1/24/2019 120

LAB SUPPLIES8084889743170160 $168.83 $168.83VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC1/31/2019 113

3 JACKETS W/ LOGO54106461170127 $158.33 $158.33CINTAS CORPORATION1/31/2019 172

2 MANHOLE MONITORING FLOATS1026069170141 $154.00 $154.00MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC1/31/2019 120

SEMINAR REGISTRATION: BOONSALAT - SHARING TECHNOLOGY20190124170145 $150.00 $150.00PIPE USERS GROUP1/31/2019 143

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS2371608001170163 $137.27 $137.27WHCI PLUMBING SUPPLY CO1/31/2019 122

IRIDIUM SVC FEE FEBRUARY 201998729170150 $112.00 $112.00REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L1/31/2019

MONTHLY CYLINDER RENTAL - DEC 201877918354170083 $91.83 $91.83MATHESON TRI-GAS INC1/24/2019 170

EXP REIMB: QUARTERLY TEAM RECOGNITION LUNCH20190123170098 $80.09 $80.09KAROLINE TERRAZAS1/24/2019 130

1 SELF INKING 2 COLOR STAMP: RECEIVED/DATE/USD162173170132 $75.95 $75.95FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC1/31/2019 141

FEB 2019 - SERVICE FEE615320190120170067 $65.91 $65.91DISH NETWORK1/24/2019

2 SPRAY HEADS9039572012170133 $64.43 $64.43GRAINGER INC1/31/2019 120

LAB SUPPLIES8084833314170108 $57.77 $57.77VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC1/24/2019 113

Page 10 of 1149 of 71



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

01/19/2019-02/01/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

HEADWORKS 3RD BAR SCREEN20190128170115 $50.00 $50.00ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER1/31/2019 143

WATER SERV 11/07/18 - 01/07/191422599170076 $49.43 $49.43HAYWARD WATER SYSTEM1/24/2019 110

1 TWILL JACKET54845798170061 $45.15 $45.15CINTAS CORPORATION1/24/2019 141

LAB SUPPLIES8084785974170107 $13.32 $38.49VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC1/24/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8084784090 $25.171/24/2019 113

10 ASSESSOR MAPS1540170050 $30.00 $30.00ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER1/24/2019

EXP REIMB: LIVESCAN FEE PRE-EMPLOYMENT20190117170099 $17.32 $17.32PHILIP THACH1/24/2019 132

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 12/29/1898XW53528170104 $13.95 $13.95UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE1/24/2019 136

 11

 43

 0

 132

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 0

 186 

 306,349.10

 132,127.32

 46,435.57

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 484,911.99

 27,208.02

 108,948.07

 348,755.90

 484,911.99

 66

 39

 13

 118

Page 11 of 1150 of 71



 

Emergency repairs to broken 
wastewater pipe to cost city $5 
million 

 

Sewage pipes from the Southeast Treatment Facility enter Islais Creek Park on Thursday, Jan 31, 2019.  (Kevin N. 

Hume/S.F. Examiner) 

By Victor Tence on February 1, 2019 1:00 am 

A leak in a 36-inch pipe near Pier 80 that is dumping treated wastewater into Islais 
Creek will cost nearly $5 million to repair, city officials said this week.  

51 of 71



The pipe from the South East Treatment Plant in Bayview Hunters Point, which treats 
80 percent of San Francisco’s wastewater, was discovered to be leaking ‘final stage 
effluent’ or treated wastewater into Islais Creek on October 18, 2018, San Francisco 
Public Utilities Commision project manager Michael Tran said Wednesday at a Board of 
Supervisors committee hearing. The pipe carries treated wastewater and stormwater to 
a discharge point in San Francisco Bay. 

The leak has not exposed the public to any health risks, as the water has already been 
treated, according to Lisa McCann, assistant executive officer of the Regional Water 
Quality Board (RWQB). The SFPUC will continue to monitor the water for any bacterial 
growth as a safety measure, but so far has found no cause for concern.  

It does need to be fixed, however, since it constitutes an ‘unauthorized discharge’ into 
Islais Creek according to the terms of the SFPUC discharge permit, according to 
McCann. The SFPUC could face regulatory action including potential fines.  

“This is one of two force mains that convey treated and disinfected stormwater and 
wastewater from the Southeast Treatment Plant to a deepwater discharge point in San 
Francisco Bay,” SFPUC spokesman Will Reisman said. “The amount of treated 
stormwater and wastewater being discharged from the leak has not been estimated, but 
is a small portion of the total flows being discharged from the Southeast Treatment 
Plant to the deepwater outfall.” 

The leak is particularly problematic since Islais Creek has already been deemed an 
‘impaired water body’ due to historic industrial chemicals used in the area, which means 
the water quality falls below required standards of the Clean Water Act, McCann said. 

On October 22, 2018, four days after the leak was discovered, the SFPUC declared an 
emergency, initially calling for $2 million to diagnose and address the failure.  

However, during subsequent inspections, divers sent to inspect the pipe discovered that 
the connection points had deteriorated further than originally suspected. SFPUC 
General Manager Harlan L. Kelly revised the declaration on December 26, 2018 to ask 
for $5 million, stating “that the scope of the repair is more specialized and substantial 
than initially identified.”  

A motion to allocate $4.9 million for an emergency project was approved by the Board 
of Supervisors’ Budget and Finance Committee on Wednesday and will go before the 
full board for final approval on Tuesday. 

The money will be spent on developing and constructing a temporary bypass pipe. The 
proposal is currently facing review with the San Francisco Bay Conservation and 
Development Commission.  

The booster pump station, which sits three miles south of Oracle Park and three blocks 
north of the treatment plant, pumps 50 to 60 million gallons of final stage treated 
wastewater per day on average and 110 million gallons on a peak day. It was built in 
1967 and was last upgraded in 2002, according to Tran. 

52 of 71



The emergency bypass pipe, if approved, is expected to take nine months to construct 
and will lie on top of the creek’s mudline. However, the booster pump station pipes 
themselves will eventually be fully replaced, at an estimated cost of $38.7 million. 
Design work began in 2015 and is expected to be completed by 2023.  

However, some advocates of water conservation believe the money and efforts to repair 
the pipe are misplaced. The Sierra Club, a grassroots environmental advocacy group, 
would prefer the city to store and reuse treated wastewater as potable water or at the 
very least in industrial projects or landscapes, said Heinrich Albert, co-chair of the bay 
chapter water committee of the Sierra Club.  

“If we have already made the effort and investment of energy to treat that water, we 
should be reusing it,” he said. 

 

A water pollution control pump station stands near where sewage pipes from the Southeast Treatment Facility 

enter Islais Creek by Islais Creek Park on Thursday, Jan. 31, 2019. (Kevin N. Hume/S.F. Examiner) 

 

53 of 71



54 of 71



The Bay has been historically resilient to nutrients 
because
 High turbidity blocks the light phytoplankton needs to grow
 Strong tidal mixing reduces nutrient concentrations
 Filter-feeding clams reduce phytoplankton concentrations

But
There has been an ongoing reduction in turbidity due to 
sediment capture by upstream dams, and clam 
populations are on the decline.

55 of 71



The Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA), representing the 
37 wastewater treatment plants that discharge to the Bay and, 
the Regional Water Board negotiated a watershed permit in 
2014

Analysis of 
Loading 
Trends

Influent and 
Effluent 

Monitoring

Support for 
Scientific 
Studies

Treatment 
Optimization 
and Upgrade 

Studies

56 of 71



Over the past several years, BACWA and its members have been negotiating a 
new Watershed Permit with the Water Board that will be in effect from 2019-
2024.

The following key tenets have been tentatively agreed to:

 Individual treatment plant nutrient monitoring and reporting; 

 Group Annual Reporting of nutrient loads to the Bay; 

 Funding for Nutrient Management Strategy’s scientific investigations; 

 A regional assessment of the feasibility and cost for reducing nutrients through means 
other than treatment and discharge at POTWs; 

 Establishing a baseline for POTWs that undertake early actions to reduce nutrients; and 

 Funding for Monitoring and Modeling at the end of the second Nutrient Watershed 
Permit 

57 of 71



 New quarterly Influent monitoring for plants
 Effluent monitoring twice per month (EBDA Outfall)
◦ The limit will be based upon the dry season average for the 

year instead of the originally proposed daily or monthly 
average.

◦ No longer includes TKN or Ortho-P which are more difficult 
tests

 Continued Group Annual Reporting through BACWA

58 of 71



 Current permit does not have effluent limits, but it 
does include targets for likely limits in 2024 permit
◦ Target is for EBDA, not individual plants.
◦ Based on 2014-2018 performance plus buffer to account for 

growth and variability
◦ EBDA’s target assumes loads currently going to Hayward 

Marsh are returned to EBDA
 Opportunity to readjust in 2024 if significant changes 

occur, e.g. loss of recycled water customers or increase 
in trucked organic waste (co-digestion)

59 of 71



 EBDA Baseline: 8100-8600 kg/day inorganic N
 EBDA Target: 9400-9800 kg/day inorganic N
◦ Ranges represent continuing discussion regarding calculation 

methodology

60 of 71



 Plants implementing projects that will result in significant 
nitrogen reductions during this permit cycle are listed in 
permit as “Early Actors”
◦ Plants that aren’t listed but achieve significant reductions will 

receive same consideration

 If further reductions are required,
◦ Early Actors will be moved to the back of the line 
◦ Others will be considered for Compliance Schedules, which can be 

up to 10 years 

61 of 71



 Compliance 
anticipated to be 
measured on a 
subembayment basis
◦ If subembayment 

exceeds limit, 
enforcement is on 
individual discharger
◦ EBDA Plants not

expected to have 
individual targets for 
compliance purposes

62 of 71



 $2.2M per year (up from $880k) to San Francisco Estuary 
Institute
◦ EBDA contribution is $277k

 Key questions:
◦ What constitutes impairment?  Which areas are impaired?
◦ Does the Bay’s trajectory signal future impairment?
◦ Are nutrient load reductions are needed? where? how much?
◦ How much time is needed for science, planning, and implementation?

63 of 71



 Study will evaluate non-traditional, multi-benefit 
approaches to reducing nutrients 
◦ Includes wetlands, horizontal levees, and water recycling
◦ Complements Nutrient Reduction Study under first Watershed 

Permit which looked at traditional treatment approaches
◦ Plan is to integrate with ongoing sea level rise resilience work by 

San Francisco Estuary Institute

64 of 71



 Administrative Drafts (AD) provided January 2 and 31, 
2019

 Tentative Order scheduled for March 2019
 Public comments received and responses made in April 

2019
 Public hearing May 8, 2019
 Adoption June 12, 2019
 Effective July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2024

65 of 71



66 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 66  |  Shots: 66  |  Duration: 2:12  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 28, 2018

Page: 1 / 5

1A 0:00

“For over 100 years”

2A 0:02

 “Union Sanitary District has safely and responsibly provided wastewater 
collection, treatment and disposal services to the Tri-city area.” 

3A 0:04

“We encourage our Fremont, 
Newark, and Union City 

customers”

4A 0:06

“ to be informed about your sewer laterals and we offer some suggestions 
about what to do if you think you have a lateral problem.” 

5A 0:08

GRAPHIC and V/O: “Your 
sewer lateral

6A 0:10

GRAPHIC and V/O: is a pipe that connects the plumbing system in your 
residence or business to USD’s main sewer line. 

7A 0:12

GRAPHIC and V/O: Property owners are responsible for maintenance, 
repair, or replacement of their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to 

USD’s main line. 

8A 0:14

GRAPHIC and V/O: Property owners are responsible for maintenance, 
repair, or replacement of their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to 

USD’s main line. 

9A 0:16

GRAPHIC and V/O: Property owners are responsible for maintenance, 
repair, or replacement of their entire sewer lateral up to its connection to 

USD’s main line.  

10A 0:18

GRAPHIC and V/O: This 
includes portions located 

under sidewalks.

11A 0:20

A neglected or improperly maintained lateral can lead to costly repairs and 
messy backups into your

12A 0:22

property

13A 0:24

buildings

14A 0:26

neighborhoods

15A 0:28

and local waterways, which 
ultimately lead 

DESK ITEM 
Item 10 
2/11/19

67 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 66  |  Shots: 66  |  Duration: 2:12  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 28, 2018

Page: 2 / 5

16A 0:30

to San Francisco Bay.

17A 0:32

A lateral issue can show up in 
several ways. Most commonly, 

a lateral stoppage will result

18A 0:34

in an overflowing toilet 

19A 0:36

 or lateral clean out.

20A 0:38

GRAPHIC and V/O: A lateral 
clean out is an access point to 

your sewer lateral.

21A 0:40

GRAPHIC and V/O:  It is 
usually found in your front 

yard.

22A 0:42

If you believe you have an issue with your sewer, we recommend that you 
contact Union Sanitary District as soon as possible. 

23A 0:44

Union Sanitary District has 
trained personnel 

24A 0:46

who respond 24/7 and can 
help determine if the

25A 0:48

problem is in your lateral. 

26A 0:50

If it’s determined that the 
sewer issue is within your 

lateral

27A 0:52

Union Sanitary District recommends you contact a licensed drain cleaning 
company or plumber. 

28A 0:54

 Most sewer lateral issues can 
be addressed by a cleaning.

29A 0:56

Once the lateral has been 
cleaned, it’s also 
recommended 

30A 0:58

that a DVD recording of the 
inspection 

DESK ITEM 
Item 10 
2/11/19

68 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 66  |  Shots: 66  |  Duration: 2:12  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 28, 2018

Page: 3 / 5

31A 1:00

be conducted by a licensed 
plumbing contractor. 

32A 1:02

GRAPHIC and V/O: A DVD 
inspection

33A 1:04

GRAPHIC and V/O: can 
identify roots or structural 

issues

34A 1:06

GRAPHIC and V/O: that may affect your lateral’s operation, and if left 
unattended,that may affect your lateral’s operation, and if left unattended,

35A 1:08

 GRAPHIC and V/O: could 
require costly repairs.

36A 1:10

You should also make sure the equipment has the ability to capture lineal 
footage from the camera access point...

37A 1:12

along the path of the inspection route to measure actual distance that will 
help pin-point any defects that may need to be addressed.

38A 1:14

USD suggests you observe the inspection, so you can ask questions while 
the camera is in your lateral. 

39A 1:16

USD staff can review 

40A 1:18

your video at our offices and 

41A 1:20

answer your questions free of 
charge.

42A 1:22

If a problem is found in your 
lateral, before any work 

begins,

43A 1:24

 a USD repair permit is required

44A 1:26

GRAPHIC and V/O:even for 
repairs on private property.

45A 1:28

If you are hiring a contractor to make repairs, we advise obtaining 
estimates from more than one licensed, insured plumbing contractor.

DESK ITEM 
Item 10 
2/11/19

69 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 66  |  Shots: 66  |  Duration: 2:12  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 28, 2018

Page: 4 / 5

46A 1:30

GRAPHIC and V/O: They can 
be researched under

47A 1:32

GRAPHIC and V/O:  listings on 
the internet...

48A 1:34

GRAPHIC and V/O: “Plumbing 
Drain & Sewer Cleaning” or

49A 1:36

GRAPHIC and V/O: “Sewer 
Contractors

50A 1:38

To avoid lateral problems, 
follow these simple do’s and 

don’ts

51A 1:40

GRAPHIC and V/O: Only 
human waste

52A 1:42

GRAPHIC and V/O: soaps

53A 1:44

GRAPHIC and V/O: toiletpaper

54A 1:46

GRAPHIC and V/O: and food 
ground in a garbage disposal 

55A 1:48

GRAPHIC and V/O: can go 
down your drains

56A 1:50

GRAPHIC and V/O: Don’t put 
wipes (even those labeled 

flushable)

57A 1:52

GRAPHIC and V/O: fats

58A 1:54

GRAPHIC and V/O:  oils

59A 1:56

GRAPHIC and V/O:  grease

60A 1:58

GRAPHIC and V/O:  medicine

DESK ITEM 
Item 10 
2/11/19

70 of 71



USD STORYBOARD
Boards: 66  |  Shots: 66  |  Duration: 2:12  |  Aspect Ratio: 16 : 9
DRAFT: DECEMBER 28, 2018

Page: 5 / 5

61A 2:00

GRAPHIC V/O:  or chemicals

62A 2:02

GRAPHIC and V/O:  down your 
drains

63A 2:04

Keep your lateral healthy. 

64A 2:06

You’ll protect your property 
investment, public health, and 

the environment.

65A 2:08

If you have further questions, 

66A 2:10

feel free to call us at (510) 
477-7500 for more information.

DESK ITEM 
Item 10 
2/11/19

71 of 71


	1 02112019_Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	6. Oral Communications.
	Presentation 7. Second Watershed Permit Update.
	Motion 8. Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 27, 2019, Board of Directors Meeting.
	Motion 9. Review and Consider Approval of Proposed Revisions to Policy 3060, Communication by Members of the Board of Directors (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Direction 10. Receive Update on Private Lateral Outreach Video and Provide Direction (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Direction 11. Provide Direction on Board Compensation Survey.
	Information 12. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of January 17, 2019.
	Information 13. Check Register.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	17. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, February 25, 2019, at 7:00 p.m.

	2 02112019 BOD Mtg Cmte Ag
	4 01282019 Minutes
	This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  General Manager Eldredge stated the Board requested a summary of the District’s software and hardware annual licensing and maintenance costs, which was summarized in a ta...
	This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the total benefit to date for the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Solar Carport, constructed in 2011, was $582,687 for a 65.8% simple payback.  T...

	8 Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 27, 2019 Board Meeting
	9.1 Policy 3060 Review
	9.2 Redline - 3060 Communication By Members Of The Board Of Directors
	Policy

	9.3 Updated - 3060 Communication By Members Of The Board Of Directors
	Policy

	10_Private lateral outreach video
	1_Residential Lateral Video
	2_Lateral Outreach Video Draft 4_mp
	3_usd storyboard 2018-12-06 12.05.16

	11.1 Provide Direction Board Compensation Survey
	11.2 2018 BOD Compensation and Benefits Survey (attachment)
	12 EBDA Meeting of January 17
	13 Bd Ck Reg Rpt02012019
	02112019 BOD Mtg Article
	DESK ITEM - Item 7 - 2nd Nutrient Watershed Permit Summary_USD 2-11-19
	2nd Nutrient Watershed Permit Summary
	Background�Historically high nutrient loads to the Bay, but with little impact
	Background�First Watershed Permit	
	Second Watershed Permit
	Second Watershed Permit�Monitoring and Reporting
	Second Watershed Permit�2024 Load Targets	
	Second Watershed Permit�2024 Load Targets	
	Second Watershed Permit�Early Action
	Second Watershed Permit�Compliance and Trading
	Second Watershed Permit�Science Funding
	Second Watershed Permit�Regional Study
	Second Watershed Permit�Permit Schedule
	Questions?

	DESK ITEM - Item 10



